
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 19, 2021 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:  Wednesday, April 21, 2021, Board Meeting 

This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, April 21, 2021, at 5:45 pm in the 
board room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa). If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323.6535 (w) or 707.3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

8. Resolution 04-21-03 - Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste agreement
with Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. – Action for Approval
This extension is the second of the three optional one-year extensions for the municipal
solid waste services provided by Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (ASI) to the cities of Bondurant,
Clive, Grimes, Johnston, Norwalk, Polk City, and Windsor Heights.

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

9. Resolution 04-21-04 - Approval of Windrow Turner for Compost Production – Action
for Approval
The windrow turner will increase efficiencies and allow staff to produce a higher
volume of compost at a faster rate.

10. Resolution 04-21-05 – Approval of Material Recovery Facility (MRF) Change Order to
add Enclosures for Compressor Units – Action Item
A change order for MWA’s Material Recovery Facility which involves adding enclosers
for compressor units recommended for the optical sorters.

11. Presentation: Transfer Station Feasibility Study – Presentation
The study evaluated locations of cities vs. the MWA Material Recovery Facility and
cost to move material. This is the first checkpoint in the study to discuss results and
determine next steps.

1 of 29



Board of Directors 
2021 Calendar Year 

Ron Pogge 
Chair 

David Gisch 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Wes Enos 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

Dean Cooper 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Ron Pogge 
Urbandale 

Steve Gaer 
West Des Moines 

Susan Skeries 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 
April 21, 2021 

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 

Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting in person may do so at 
the MWA Central Office, where seats will be arranged to allow for social 
distancing. Masks will be available and are mandatory for public guests. 

Additional CDC recommendations will be implemented. 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 8

5. Consideration of Minutes March 17, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution – 04-21-01 - Consideration of February 2021, Financial Statements
– Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution - 04-21-02 – Consideration of March 2021, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

8. Resolution 04-21-03 – Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste
Agreement with ASI, Inc. - Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Items 9 through 10

9. Resolution 04-21-04 – Approval of Windrow Turner for Compost Production -
Action for Approval

10. Resolution 04-21-05 – Approval of Material Recovery Facility (MRF) Change
Order to add Enclosures for Compressor Units - Action Item

11. Presentation – Transfer Station Feasibility Study

12. Director’s Report

13. Chair’s Report

2 of 29



Page 2 of 2 

MWA Board Meeting 
April 21, 2021 

14. General Board Discussion and Other Business

15. Correspondence

16. Adjournment

May Executive/Finance Meeting: May 5, 2021, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust 
Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 

May Board Meeting: May 19, 2021, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 
100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 

3 of 29



 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 

Des Moines, Iowa 50309 
515-244-0021 

 
 

March 17, 2021, Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Ron Pogge, chair, 
called the March 17, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:57 pm.    
A quorum was present. 

 
Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance 
Wes Enos, Bondurant  
John Edwards, Clive 
David Gisch, Grimes 
Tom Cope, Johnston 
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville  
Ed Kuhl, Norwalk  
Rob Sarchet, Polk City 
Gerald Lane, Runnells 
Ron Pogge, Urbandale 
Bret Hodne, West Des Moines 
Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights 

 
2. Approval of Regular Agenda 

Moved by Clive, seconded by West Des Moines, to approve the March 17, 2021, board 
meeting agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 

 
3. Public Forum 

There were no requests to address the Board. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless 
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration: 

 
4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 9 

Moved by Clive, seconded by West Des Moines, to approve the Consent Agenda, items 
4 through 9. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 

5. Consideration of Minutes of February 17, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board 
Meeting – Action for Approval 
  

6. Resolution 03-21-01 - Consideration of January 2021, Financial Statement - 
Action to Receive and File 

 
7. Resolution 03-21-01 - Consideration of February 2021, Monthly Expenditures -  

Action for Approval 
 
 

4 of 29



8. Resolution 03-21-03 - Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste Agreement for
West Des Moines – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 03-21-04 - Approval of Waste Management Compost It! Contract Extension –
Action to Receive and File

END CONSENT AGENDA 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Item 10 

10. Resolution 03-21-05 - Approval of Curb It! Recycling Rate Increase - Action Item
Motion to table resolution 03-21-05 – Approval of Curb It! Recycling Rate Increase by
Johnston. Absent to second the motion. Motion did not pass to table resolution 03-21-05
– Approval of Curb It! Recycling Rate Increase.

Moved by Grimes, seconded by Norwalk, to approve Resolution 03-21-05. Motion 
carried by voice vote with Johnston apposing. Voice roll call was not taken.    

11. Director’s Report

Michael McCoy, executive director, shared informational presentations will appear as 
part of the regular agenda going forward. A video tour of Metro Northwest Transfer 
Station was shown.

McCoy reported the first Grimes second Saturday event March 8, 2021, was a success. 
At the events, residents can drop off garbage, hazardous waste, recycling, or buy 
compost. These events will continue through November.

Emily Dobbins, human resources manager, presented on a new employee relations tool. 
Jake Christensen, Christensen Development, discussed a change order for MWA’s 
Material Recovery Facility that will be on the agenda for April. The change order involves 

adding enclosers for compressor units required for the optical sorters.

Kyle Fischer, hazardous waste facility manger, presented about the hazardous waste 
services MWA provides for 20 counties throughout Central Iowa.

Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, shared the educational design for the MRF, including 
engagement with exhibit designer Split Rock.

The April executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, 
Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, April 7, 2021, at 12:00 pm.

The April board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, 
Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, April 21, 2021, at 5:45 pm.

12. Chair’s Report
No Report.

13. General Board Discussion and Other Business
No report.

14. Adjournment

5 of 29



Moved by Clive, seconded by West Des Moines, to adjourn the March 17, 2021, board 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 6:51 pm. 

__________________________________ _____________________________ 
 Michael McCoy, Executive Director  Ron Pogge, Chair 

6 of 29



7 of 29



8 of 29



9 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 

Monthly Board Meeting 

April 21, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM 08 

ITEM: 
Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste Agreement for Bondurant, Clive, Grimes, 
Johnston, Norwalk, Polk City, and Windsor Heights.  

SUMMARY: 
This extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (ASI) for 
one year. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Metro Waste Authority has held this contract with ASI since 2013 for the management of 
municipal solid waste services in Bondurant, Clive, Grimes, Johnston, Norwalk, Polk City, and 
Windsor Heights. Through a competitive bidding process, ASI was selected as the qualified 
vendor for this service and has performed to contract specifications. This extension is the 
second of the three optional one-year extensions. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Exercise of Option to Extend Agreement 

CONTACTS: 
Cassie Riley, community relations manager, 515.323.6502 

10 of 29



Metro Waste Authority 
Notice of Extension—Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste 

THIS NOTICE OF RENEWAL is made and entered into this ____ day of ________ 2021, 
by and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa 
Code, (“MWA”) and Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (“Contractor.”) 

WHEREAS, by agreement dated December 10, 2012, the Contractor and MWA entered 
into an Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste (the “Agreement”), as amended, wherein 
Contractor agreed to collect, transport and dispose at the MWA Landfill or Transfer Station all 
solid waste material from eligible residences of the Participating Member Communities from July 
1, 2013, through June 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2 of the Agreement provides that the term for which the Contractor 
shall provide the Collection Services under this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2013 (the 
Commencement Date), and expire on June 30, 2021 (the “Expiration Date”). The Agreement may 
be extended for up to three (3) one (1) year periods at the sole discretion of MWA; and 

WHEREAS, in the event MWA decides to exercise its option to extend the Agreement, it 
shall give written notice to the Contractor not less than ninety (90) days and not more than one 
hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the then current term of this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 
other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 

1. Pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, MWA provides notice of its initial election
to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional one year period.

2. The renewal period shall be effective from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.
3. All other terms of the Agreement and any amendments shall remain effective and

enforceable as written. 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By:____________________________________________ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

ANKENY SANITATION, INC.: 

_______________________________________________ 

By_____________________________________________ 

11 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 

Monthly Board Meeting 

April 21, 2021 

Agenda Item 09

ITEM:  
Approval of Windrow Turner Purchase 

SUMMARY:   
Backhus A60 Windrow Turner is the bid that best meets operational needs. 

DISCUSSION POINTS:  
The Backhus A60 Windrow Turner will be an instrumental piece of equipment to 
increase efficiencies and reduce operational costs related to the production of Grow 
Gold compost. Metro Waste Authority received three bids: Vermeer CT718 Compost 
Turner, $478,080.68; Bachus A60 Windrow Turner, $535,000; Komptech Torturn X6000, 
$677,500. 

HISTORY:   
The production of compost requires the rows of material to be turned regularly. The 
current process is very manual, primarily performed using the front bucket of a bulldozer 
to manually rotate the material. From 2016 to 2020, sales of Grow Gold Compost have 
increased 75%. Today’s demand is outpacing current production practices.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval of the purchase of Backhus A60 Windrow Turner for a total of $535,000. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS:   
The windrow turner is a budgeted item, and the Backhus bid at $535,000 came in under 
the budgeted amount by $65,000.

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A: Vermeer Quote
Attachment B: Backhus Quote
Attachment C: Komptech Torturn Quote

CONTACT: 
Geoff Dickson, disposal operations manager, 515.323.4447

4822-0655-0706\1 

12 of 29



13 of 29



14 of 29



15 of 29



16 of 29



17 of 29



18 of 29



19 of 29



20 of 29



21 of 29



22 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 

Monthly Board Meeting 

April 21, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM 10

ITEM: 
Approval to purchase a premanufactured enclosure to protect the compressors that 
drive the optical sorters in the Material Recovery Facility. 

SUMMARY: 
CP and ISG are recommending an enclosure to house the compressors to extend the life of the 
units. Fibers and dust in the air from recycling processing can negatively impact the life of 
compressors. In addition, compressors generate significant heat. The enclosure and 
associated venting would allow the heat to be re-directed during cold months to help warm the 
building or be removed from the building during warmer months. The enclosure will be sized to 
accommodate up to three compressors to allow for potential future growth.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The compressors are integral to the operation of the optical sorters used in processing 
recyclables. The ability to limit down-time of the compressors, and prolong the lifespan, allows 
for maximized operational efficiencies.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The enclosure and air ventilation system cost $116,000. The MRF bidding process was below 
budget, so some of the savings would be re-directed toward this opportunity to extend the 
longevity and limit down time for the system. 

CONTACTS: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6535 

23 of 29



Metro Waste Authority Board 

Monthly Board Meeting 

April 21, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM 11 

ITEM: 
Presentation of Transfer Station Feasibility Study: phase one 

SUMMARY: 
J.R. Miller and Associates (JRMA) was hired to study the need for a new recycling only transfer 
station to haul material to the new Metro Waste Authority Material Recovery Facility being 
constructed in Grimes. The study included a transportation focused financial model and 
potential site and facility layouts if the need for a new facility was established. Through their 
analysis, it became apparent that a recycling only transfer station is not necessary at this time.   

Potential future areas of study would consider the need for a transfer station with both solid 
waste and recyclable handling due to the age and size of the current Metro Central Transfer
Station.

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
A cover letter and executive summary have been provided by JRMA and a presentation of the 
findings will be provided at the Board Meeting on April 21, 2021. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
J.R. Miller & Associates has determined that a recycling only transfer station is not necessary 
at this time. Staff concurs.  

ATTACHMENTS:
Cover letter and executive summary.

CONTACTS: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6535 

24 of 29



April 15, 2021 

Michael McCoy 
Executive Director 
Metro Waste Authority 
Des Moines, IA 50369-1864 

RE: Recycling Transfer Station Study – Executive Summary 

Dear Michael: 

JRMA appreciates the opportunity to have provided consulting services to review and analyze the 
potential need for a new transfer station to deliver recyclables to the Metro Waste Authority (MWA) 
material recovery facility (MRF) being constructed in Grimes.  

The executive summary, on the following pages, includes key information on the transportation costing 
model developed to analyze the need for a new transfer station. Additional detail and background 
information will be provided at the MWA Board Meeting on April 21, 2021. As was discussed with MWA 
staff, the finance committee and yourself, the new MWA MRF in Grimes will result in a modest hauling 
costs savings for MWA’s overall service area. This costs savings is for hauling costs only and does not 
include the additional avoided costs of siting and constructing a new transfer station. At this time, we do 
not recommend a new recycling only transfer station be built to receive and transport materials to the new 
MRF.   

Sincerely, 

J.R. MILLER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Architects and Engineers 

Brett Wolfe, PE 
Project Manager, Senior Facility Advisor 

25 of 29

http://www.jrma.com/


Background 
J.R. Miller and Associates (JRMA) was hired by Metro Waste Authority (WMA) to investigate the 
need for a new transfer station to transport recyclables from member jurisdictions (and Des 
Moines) to the new material recovery facility (MRF) in Grimes, IA. The primary component of the 
study was a transportation model to determine the hauling costs for each of the member 
communities. JRMA’s original work scope also included preliminary facility sizing and the 
development of a conceptual site and facility layout for the potential new transfer station.    
The scope of work included regular progress checks with MWA staff. Upon completion of the 
transportation model, JRMA presented our original findings to answer questions, receive 
feedback and discuss next steps on the project. The document represents a high-level summary 
of those findings and will be discussed in further detail at the MWA board meeting on April 21, 
2021.   

Transportation Model Data Inputs 
The transportation model was developed by Chris Bell, who has developed numerous system 
costing, rate analysis, cost of service and related financial models for both public and private 
solid waste clients. The initial process in the study was for the JRMA Team to evaluate a 
number of key pieces of data obtained from MWA, the City of Des Moines and historic recycling 
data. The following key data was collected, reviewed for consistency with industry norms and 
then input into the transportation model to determine approximate hauling costs across the 22 
member agencies and the City of Des Moines. 
Model Data and Input Sources: 

Model Data MWA Des Moines Data Source 
Annual Recycle Tons 18,701 9,355 Mid America – June 2019 to May 2020 
Annual Loads 4,750 1,724 Mid America – June 2019 to May 2020 
Processing Cost per Ton $38.22 $39.26 Mid America – June 2019 to May 2020 
Collection Cost per Hour $95 $110.63 WM / City of Des Moines 
Total Households (HH) 99,380 64,500 MWA / City of Des Moines 
Annual Pounds per HH 376 290 (Recycle Tons x 2000) / Households 
Average Route Payload 3.94 5.43 Recycle Tons / Annual Loads 

Model Methodology and Annual Transportation Costs 
As stated previously, MWA’s 22 participating communities and the City of Des Moines were 
analyzed as part of the transportation model. The current metro area recycling system involves 
dedicate recycling collection trucks delivering commingled materials to the Mid America MRF 
located at 2742 East Market St. in Des Moines. The current Mid America facility was used as 
the “base case” of the model to develop hauling costs comparisons for three separate 
scenarios/options.   

26 of 29



A geographic central point for each city was established utilizing Google maps to measure the 
approximate drive time for three distinct scenarios. The three analyzed scenarios included 
hauling to the existing Mid America facility, the new MRF in Grimes, and a potential new transfer 
station at the Metro Park East landfill.   

The roundtrip drive time for each city was multiplied by the operational cost per truck hour to 
compute the roundtrip drive costs. Dividing the roundtrip drive cost by the average recycle 
payload generated the recycling cost per ton. This recycling cost per ton was used to calculate 
the annual drive time costs for each jurisdiction (cost per ton multiplied by the annual material 
tons collected from each city).  

The following table summarizes the calculation methodology for the City of West Des Moines.  
Des Moines was analyzed using to two centroids to account for part of the city being closer to 
the new MRF in Grimes and the other part being closer to the existing Mid America facility. The 
model contains similar calculations for each of the 22 member communities. 

Example of Calculations for City of West Des Moines 

Facility Mid America MWA MRF 
Metro Park     

East Landfill 
Roundtrip Time in Minutes and Hours 
from the West Des Moines Library 

42 minutes 
or 0.70 hrs. 

24 minutes 
or 0.40 hrs. 

72 minutes 
or 1.20 hrs. 

MWA Operational Cost per Hour $95.00 $95.00 $95.00 
Drive Time Cost (Cost x Hours) $66.50 $38.00 $114.00 
Average Tons per Payload 3.94 3.94 3.94 
Drive Cost per Ton (Drive Cost / Tons) $16.89 $9.65 $28.96 
Annual Material Tons 3,284.7 3,284.7 3,284.7 
Annual Cost $55,482 $31,704 $95,112 

 

To determine the total overall system cost impact, the model uses $95 per operation hour, 
(derived from Waste Management’s approximate range) and the and average payload of 3.94 
tons for all MWA member communities. The model uses $110.63 per operational hour and an 
average payload of 5.43 tons for Des Moines. This results in drive costs per minute per ton of 
$0.402 and $0.34 for MWA and Des Moines, respectively. The table on the next page 
summarizes the net annual savings/cost per jurisdiction to drive to the new MWA MRF vs. 
driving to the Mid America MRF.  

 

  

27 of 29



Jurisdiction 
Annual 
Tons (Savings) Jurisdiction 

Annual 
Tons Additional Cost 

Urbandale 2,789 $(33,644) Des Moines 9,817 $53,372 

West Des Moines  3,285 $(23,778) Pleasant Hill 754 $9,092 

Clive 1,285 $(11,371) Ankeny 4,019 $6,465 

Grimes 735 $(11,825) Altoona 1,091 $2,633 

Johnston 1,527 $(12,285) Carlisle 247 $1,984 

Polk City 355 $(4,000) Bondurant 515 $828 

Norwalk 771 $(3,102) Hartford 67 $593 

Windsor Heights  544 $(875) Polk County 355 $286 

Sheldahl 9 $(60) Mitchellville 96 $155 

Alleman 30 $(24) Others¹ 127 $714 

Totals: 11,330 $(100,964) Totals: 17,088 $76,122 
1 Others include Elkhart, Runnells, Mingo, and Prairie City 

 

In summary, the net transportation costs computed by the model was an overall system savings 
of $24,842 (the sum of $100,964 in savings and $76,122 of additional costs) to drive to the new 
MWA MRF in Grimes instead of the Mid America MRF. The costs to drive to the Metro Park 
East landfill were considerably higher than driving to the Grimes MRF and also higher than 
driving to the Mid America MRF. 

Conclusions and Recommendation(s) 

Through the process of developing, quantifying and then analyzing the transportation costs for 
recyclables in the Des Moines metropolitan area, the following conclusions and 
recommendations are submitted for MWA’s consideration: 

• A recycling only transfer station does not appear to be a good investment for MWA due 
to only a few communities benefiting from an eastern metro location and because the 
transportation costs to the new MRF in Grimes will actually result in a modest system-
wide costs savings of approximately $25,000 annually.   

• Only five member communities (Altoona, Runnells, Mingo, Mitchellville, and Prairie City) 
would recognize a transportation costs savings from the construction of a recycling only 
transfer station at the Metro Park East Landfill. The approximate savings or these five 
communities is less than $4000, which is significantly less than the cost of constructing a 
new transfer facility at the landfill.    

• The operational hauling costs are primarily impacted by the time expended per route and 
the payload of the collection truck. Potential optimization of these two factors, could 
result in further savings beyond what was calculated in the model. 

28 of 29



• Most of the member communities with higher annual weight per household are located in 
the north and west parts of the metro area and are thus closer to the new MRF in 
Grimes. 

• The analysis of the study did not consider a potential dual use transfer station for both 
municipal solid waste (MSW) and single stream recycling, which could be a 
consideration for MWA in the future as existing infrastructure ages and/or population 
demographics change from their current rates.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29 of 29


	Board Memo - pg. 1
	Agenda - pgs 2-3
	Agenda Item 5: Min. for Mar. 17, 2021 - pgs. 4-6
	Agenda Item 7: Expenditures for Mar. 2021 - pgs. 7-9
	Agenda Item 8: ASI Extension - pgs. 10-11
	Agenda Item 9: Windrow Turner - pgs. 12-22
	Agenda Item 10: MRF Change Oder - pg. 23
	Agenda Item 11: Transfer Staion Feasibility Study Presentation - pgs. 24-29



